IN THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT

STATE OF FLORIDA,

PETITIONER,

RESPONDENT.

v.

Case No. 96,392

JOSEPH M. DAMICO,

ON PETITION FOR REVIEW FROM

MERITS BRIEF OF PETITIONER

THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL STATE OF FLORIDA

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

ROBERT J. KRAUSS
Senior Assistant Attorney General
Chief of Criminal Law, Tampa
Florida Bar No. 238538

WENDY BUFFINGTON
Assistant Attorney General

Florida Bar No. 0779921 2002 North Lois Avenue, Suite 700 Tampa, Florida 33607-2366 (813)873-4739

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The state invokes this Court's discretionary jurisdiction pursuant to Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A) (vi), Fla. R. App. P. (1999), of the Second District Court of Appeal opinion issued in this case certifying its decision is in direct conflict with McKnight v. State, 727 So.2d 314 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1999)¹ and Woods v. State, 24 Fla. L. Weekly (D) 831 (Fla. 1st DCA March 21, 1999)². Additionally, the instant opinion is in direct conflict with the Fifth District's opinion in Speed v. State, 732 So.2d 17 (Fla. 5th DCA 1999).

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

In an eleven count amended information in case number 97-14662, the state charged Respondent with one count of armed burglary; five counts of grand theft; four counts of burglary; and one count of fraudulent use of a credit card for acts occurring in June and August of 1997. (R15-19). On September 29, 1997, the state filed its notice of Respondent's qualifications for sentencing as a Prison Releasee Re-offender. (R13)

On October 1, 1998, a hearing was held at which Respondent's counsel presented Respondent's background to the court. (R349) Respondent's counsel represented that Respondent's mother, an

¹McKnight is pending before this Court in case number 95,154.

²Woods is pending before this Court in Case Number 95,281.

alcoholic, took methamphetamine while pregnant with Respondent.³ (R351) At some time after he was born, she told him she wished she had aborted him. (R351) On Christmas Eve when he was five, she threw a glass ashtray at him because he was going to open some presents under the tree. (R351) It hit him in the forehead and required stitches the next day. (R351)

At age seven, Respondent was placed in foster care and did not have a good foster care experience. (R351-352) At nine, Respondent had his first contact with the criminal justice system. (R352) He was charged with burglary for breaking into a neighbor's house for food when he was hungry. He also took a radio. (R352) His father, who had left when Respondent was very young, reappeared when Respondent was 10 and sexually abused him over the next few years. (R351-352) At 15, Respondent began a series of hospitalizations for mental health problems including several serious suicide attempts. (R352-353)

His prior record consisted of only one violent crime, an aggravated battery, for Respondent's shooting someone with a BB gun. (R352; 360) He scored 30 years on the guidelines. (R353) Under the Prison Releasee Re-offender statute, Respondent was required to serve a mandatory life sentence. (R353) The defense argued there

³Counsel pointed out to the court the mother was present to corroborate any of these facts if the court desired. (R350; 355)

⁴Counsel pointed out the allegations of sexual abuse were not new and were set forth in his mental health records when Respondent was 15. (R355-356)

was a legitimate issue as to whether evidence of the burglaries should be suppressed based on the circumstances surrounding the stop. A lengthy suppression motion had been filed. (R353-354) The defense was not arguing the suppression issue but presented it as a legal basis for the court to not impose the Prison Releasee Reoffender life sentence. (R354) Additionally, the defense argued the court could deviate from the guidelines based on Respondent's host of emotional and mental health problems which had made it virtually impossible for him to conform his behavior to the requirements of law. (R354) The defense asked for a 15 sentence followed by 15 years probation. (R355)

Respondent spoke in his own behalf and stated his emotional problems were not an excuse for the burglaries. (R357) He committed the burglaries because no stable job could support his cocaine habit, a habit which became worse after he was sent to prison. (R356-357) He was very afraid of spending his life in prison and asked the court for mercy. (R358)

The state responded that the court had no discretion in not sentencing Respondent to the mandatory Prison Releasee Re-offender life sentence. (R358) The factual basis for these crimes was that Respondent and a codefendant rented a U-Haul truck and burglarized three houses. (R358) During one of the burglaries, they stole an unloaded shotgun. (R359) The instant burglaries occurred less than three months after Respondent's release from prison for grand

theft, burglary and dealing in stolen property convictions. (R359) While in jail on the instant burglary charges, Respondent spit on a corrections officer during a disagreement. (R360) A couple months before the instant October 1, 1998 hearing, Respondent masterminded an escape attempt with his girlfriend. (R360) The authorities got wind of the escape attempt as Respondent and cohorts headed toward an area where Respondent's girlfriend had left a U-Haul truck with keys in it, a dangerous looking knife and cigarettes. (R360-361) When stopped, Respondent had a toothbrush with a razor in the end. (R361) Respondent admitted the escape was his idea because he didn't want to spend his life in prison. (R361) His girlfriend admitted her participation though Respondent tried to keep her out of it. (R361)

The state, though sympathizing with Respondent's rotten life, argued the court had no discretion in not sentencing Respondent as a Prison Releasee Re-offender. (R361-363; 366)

The court disagreed with the state concluding the statute gave the court such discretion. (R364) The court offered Respondent 20 years incarceration, rather than the mandatory life, finding extenuating circumstances under s. 775.082(8)(d)1.d., Fla. Stat. (1997). (R367)

Respondent entered a guilty plea to the charges in case number 97-14662 with the understanding he would receive a sentence of 20 years incarceration as a habitual violent felony offender, 15 year

minimum mandatory, followed by 5 years probation in case numbers 97-14662; 98-8982; and 98-14826. (R28-29; R376-380) This sentence was to run concurrently with sentences in case numbers 95-38888 and 95-36035. (R29) He was adjudicated guilty, (R380), and so sentenced, over the state's renewed objection. (R380)⁵

The state appealed the trial court's refusal to impose the mandatory Prison Releasee Re-offender sentence arguing it was not within the trial court's discretion not to impose the mandatory sentence once the state sought its imposition for a qualified offender. On August 11, 1999, the Second District Court of Appeal issued a written opinion affirming the sentence [based on its

⁵Respondent was sentence in case number 97-14662, on each count, as follows:

^{1 (}armed burglary): 20 years as a habitual violent felony offender with a 15 year minimum mandatory, followed by five years probation, (R30-32-33);

^{2, 4, 6,} and 11 (grand theft): 10 years as a habitual violent felony offender with a 10 year minimum mandatory(R30; 34-35; 38-39; 42-43; 52-53);

^{3, 5, 8} and 10 (burglary): 20 years as a habitual violent felony offender with a 15 year minimum mandatory, followed by five years probation (R30; 36-37; 40-41; 46-47; 50-51);

^{7 (}fraudulent use of a credit card): 10 years as a habitual violent felony offender with a 10 year minimum mandatory. (R30; 44-45)

^{9:} The judgment reflects Respondent was sentenced on count 9, grand theft to 20 years incarceration as opposed to the 10 years imposed on all the other grand theft charges. Because grand theft is a third degree felony punishable by up to five years and when doubled for habitual offender sentencing, punishable by up to 10 years, the 20 year sentence on this count is improper. Petitioner believes this is a scrivener's error in light of how many counts Respondent was sentenced on. Petitioner believes the written sentence should reflect this count as a 10 year habitual violent felony offender sentence with a ten year minimum mandatory as the other grand theft convictions.

These sentences are to run concurrently with those in case numbers 98-14826; 98-08982; and 95-11825. (R54)

opinion in <u>State v. Cotton</u>,728 So. 2d 251 (Fla. 2d DCA 1998)] and certifying its opinion conflicted with <u>McKnight v. State</u>, 727 So.2d 314 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1999) and <u>Woods v. State</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly (D) 831 (Fla. 1st DCA March 21, 1999). (See Exhibit A, attached.) On August 25, 1999, the state filed its timely notice to invoke the discretionary review of this Court. This petition follows.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Prison Releasee Re-offender statute leaves no discretion to the trial court to not impose the mandatory sentences provided in the statute where the state seeks such sentencing and the defendant qualifies for such sentencing. The instant trial judge erred in not imposing the mandatory sentence. Because the plea was entered based on a belief Respondent would not receive the mandatory sentence, Respondent should be able to withdraw his plea upon remand.

ARGUMENT

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN REFUSING TO SENTENCE RESPONDENT TO THE MANDATORY LIFE IN PRISON SENTENCE AS A PRISON RELEASEE REOFFENDER WHERE HE QUALIFIED AS SUCH.

The trial court erred in failing to sentence Respondent to life in prison pursuant to the Prison Releasee Reoffender statute where the state sought and Respondent qualified for such sentencing. Section 775.082(8)(a), Fla. Stat. (1997), which sets out the criteria for sentencing under the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act, provides in pertinent part:

- "(8)(a)1. "Prison releasee reoffender" means any defendant who commits, or attempts to commit: ...p. **Armed burglary** ...within 3 years of being released from a state correctional facility operated by the Department of Corrections or a private vendor.
- 2. If the state attorney determines that a defendant is a prison releasee reoffender as defined in subparagraph 1., the state attorney may seek to have the court sentence the defendant as a prison releasee reoffender. Upon proof from the state attorney that establishes by a preponderance of the evidence that a defendant is a prison releasee reoffender as defined in this section, such defendant is not eligible for sentencing under the sentencing guidelines and must be sentenced as follows:

. . .

a. For a felony punishable by life, by a term of imprisonment for life;

. . .

- (d)1. It is the intent of the Legislature that offenders previously released from prison who meet the criteria in paragraph (a) be punished to the fullest extent of the law and as provided in this subsection, unless any of the following circumstances exist:
- a. The prosecuting attorney does not have sufficient evidence to prove the highest charge available;

- b. The testimony of a material witness cannot be obtained;
- c. The victim does not want the offender to receive the mandatory prison sentence and provides a written statement to that effect; or
- d. Other extenuating circumstances exist **which preclude the just prosecution** of the offender.

Section 775.082(8), Fla. Stat.(1997)(emphasis added).

In the instant case, the court erred in failing to sentence Respondent to the mandatory life sentence on the armed burglary charge as a Prison Releasee Reoffender where he qualified as such. It is the state, not the trial court, who has discretion not to seek an enhanced sentence under s. 775.082(8) as evidenced by the language in (8)(a)2., "... the state attorney may seek to have the court sentence the defendant as a prison releasee reoffender." However, once the state seeks this sentencing and the defendant qualifies as such an offender, the court must sentence him to the enhanced sentence. The statute refers to circumstances affecting the prosecution of the offense and prosecution is not a judicial function. It was the state's choice, not the trial judge's choice, as to whether to seek the mandatory sentence. The trial court did not have the discretion to refuse to impose the enhanced sentence where the state sought its imposition and Respondent qualified for such sentencing.

The fact subsection (d) does not bestow discretion upon the trial court to not impose the enhanced sentence is further

evidenced by the language of (d) 2. which requires the state attorney to keep statistics on cases wherein the defendant qualified as a prison releasee reoffender but was not sentenced to the enhanced sentence. Since it is the state who must keep these statistics (seemingly as a justification for why such sentencing was not sought), it follows it is the state which has the discretion as limited by the statute in seeking imposition of these enhanced sentences.

Additionally, the Senate Staff Analysis and Economic Impact Statement (Staff Analysis) prepared for this statute supports the state's claim it is the state which bears all the discretion in deciding whether to seek enhanced sentencing. See Exhibit B, attached, at pages 6, 7 and 10. See page 6:

A distinction between the prison releasee provision and the current habitualization provision is that, when the state attorney does pursue sentencing of the defendant as a prison releasee reoffender and proves that the defendant is a prison releasee reoffender, the court must impose the appropriate mandatory minimum term of imprisonment.

See page 7:

The CS provides legislative intent to prohibit plea bargaining in prison releasee reoffender cases unless: there is insufficient evidence; a material witness's testimony cannot be obtained; the victim provides a written objection to such sentencing; or there are other extenuating circumstances precluding prosecution.

See page 10:

This CS gives the state attorney the total discretion to pursue prison releasee reoffender sentencing. If the court finds by a preponderance of the evidence that the defendant qualifies, it has no discretion and must impose the statutory maximum allowable for the offense.

The Staff Analysis clarifies that subsection (d) is directed at the state attorney and expresses an intent to prohibit plea bargaining except in these situations. (See Exhibit B, attached, at page 7.) This interpretation explains why the language in subsection (d) refers to factors affecting the prosection of the offense as opposed to reasons to mitigate the sentence. The staff analysis reflects the Second District's opinion in State v.Cotton,728 So.2d 251 (Fla. 2d DCA 1998), followed in the instant case, was wrongly decided.

of In Cotton, the Second District summarily concluded, "... applicability of the exceptions set out in subsection (d) involves a fact-finding function. We hold that the trial court, not the prosecutor, has the responsibility to determine the facts and exercise the discretion permitted by the statute. Historically, fact-finding and discretion in sentencing have been the prerogative of the trial court. Had the legislature wished to transfer this exercise of judgment to the office of the state attorney, it would have done so in unequivocal terms." Merit briefs have been filed in State v. Cotton, pending before this Court in Case Number 94,996. [Subsequently, the Fourth District in State v. Wise, 24 Fla. L. Weekly(D) 657 (Fla. 4th DCA March 10, 1999) aligned itself with Cotton and certified conflict with McKnight. Wise is pending before this Court in case number 95,230.]

The state notes that the legislature has done exactly as suggested by the Second District in <u>Cotton</u> and clarified that it is the state, not the judge, who has sentencing discretion under this statute. See Ch. 99-188, Laws of Fla., attached as Exhibit C, where the exception provision to Prison Releasee Re-offender sentencing now provides:

By contrast, the Third District in <u>McKnight</u>, in a lengthy, well-reasoned opinion, held that the statute does not afford the trial court discretion in imposing the Prison Releasee Re-offender sentence when the state seeks its imposition and the defendant qualifies for such sentencing. The Third District based its holding on the plain language of the statute and the legislative history as set forth in the Staff Analysis and the House Committee on Criminal Justice Appropriations, Committee Substitute for House Bill 1371 (1997) Bill Research and Economic Impact Statement 11 (April 2, 1997).

The <u>McKnight</u> court noted that the exceptions set forth in subsection (d) (except for the provision regarding the victim's desire the defendant not be subject to the Prison Releasee Reoffender sentence) make no sense if applied to the trial court's discretion. For example, how can a sentencing judge apply (d) 1.

a.: "The prosecuting attorney does not have sufficient evidence to prove the highest charge available;" (d) 1. b.: "The testimony of a material witness cannot be obtained;" or (d) 1. d. "Other

It is the intent of the Legislature that offenders previously released from prison who meet the criteria in paragraph (a) be punished to the fullest extent of the law and as provided in this subsection, unless the state attorney determines that extenuating circumstances exist which preclude the just prosecution of the offender, including whether the victim recommends that the offender not be sentenced as provided in this subsection.

⁽Emphasis added.)

extenuating circumstances exist which preclude the just prosecution of the offender." ? (Emphasis added.) These exceptions make no sense when applied to a judge's sentencing discretion. They make perfect sense when applied to a prosecutor's exercise of discretion in determining whether to charge a crime which will bring the defendant within the realm of the Prison Releasee Re-offender statute or to charge a lesser crime which would not invoke the statute.

The reasoning of <u>McKnight</u> based on the legislative history and plain language of the statute is the more sound analysis of the instant issue. <u>McKnight</u> was followed by the First District in <u>Woods</u>⁷ and the Fifth District in <u>Speed</u>⁸. Based on the plain language of the statute and as clarified through the Staff

⁷<u>Woods v. State</u>, 24 Fla. L. Weekly (D) 831 (Fla. 1st DCA March 21, 1999) (based on plain language of the statute, statute does not afford trial judge discretion to not impose mandatory sentence; no need to resort to legislative history for this conclusion because of the plain language of the statute; however, legislative history additionally supports this conclusion; no violation of separation of powers/due process or equal protection; certified question to this Court:

DOES THE PRISON RELEASEE REOFFENDER PUNISHMENT ACT, CODIFIED AS SECTION 775.082(8), FLORIDA STATUTES (1997), VIOLATE THE SEPARATION OF POWERS CLAUSE OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION?

⁸Speed v. State, 732 So.2d 17 (Fla. 5th DCA 1999) (based upon plain language of the Act, and its legislative history, the state, not the trial judge, has discretion under subsection (d) as to whether to seek the mandatory prison term; no violation of separation of powers doctrine; raises issue but does not address possible due process violation based on victim's "veto" power.) Speed is pending before this Court in Case Number 95,706.

Analysis, the trial court had no discretion not to impose the enhanced sentence in this case once the state sought enhanced sentencing and Respondent qualified for sentencing as a Prison Releasee Re-offender.

Because the language of the statute is mandatory and does not give the trial court discretion not to impose the mandatory sentence, the instant sentence should be reversed. Because Respondent entered his pleas in case number 97-14662 with the understanding he would receive the instant 20 year sentence, he must be given an opportunity to withdraw his pleas on remand.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, Petitioner asks this Court to reverse the instant sentence; disapprove the Second District's opinion in State v. Cotton (and the Fourth District's opinion in State v. Wise,) and approve the Third District opinion in McKnight v. State.