#### IN THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

Case No. 96,392

v.

JOSEPH DAMICO,

Respondent.

# ON PETITION FOR REVIEW FROM THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL STATE OF FLORIDA

/

# MERITS BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

Walter L. Grantham, Jr. Attorney for Respondent Florida Bar No. 0705322 Belleair Oaks Professional Centre 2240 Belleair Road, Suite 135 Clearwater, FL 33764 (727) 447-2728

####

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

In addition to the facts enunciated by the Petitioner, attorney for Respondent made reference to, and had presented, medical records at the Sentencing Hearing on October 1, 1998. These records included dental medical records, and with mental health records. (R p.80-129) Documentation of his mental health condition was with records from G. Pearce Wood Hospital and Horizon Hospital back in 1993 - 1994, along with mental health records through the present. (R p.130-338) These records were referred to, presented, filed with the Court, and included as part of this Appeal.

That after a recitation of the Respondent's tragic childhood, upbringing, subjected to the abuse, as well as his mental health and previous suicide attempts, even the attorney on behalf of the State of Florida indicated, "You know, unfortunately, all of us in society come from different backgrounds, and his came from the very worst". (R p.363)

The Court, after considering all facts of the allegations, considering that age of the Respondent, and his background that was presented as evidence on behalf of the Respondent, the Court acknowledged the Respondent's difficult and tragic life. (R p.379) Based upon all of the circumstances even acknowledged to by the

State of Florida, the Court, in exercising its discretion, found that extenuating circumstances did not warrant the just prosecution of the case, and therefore sentenced the Respondent to twenty (20) years as a Habitual Violent Offender with a fifteen (15) year minimum mandatory, followed by five (5) years of Probation.

# SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Trial Court has the discretion, by a clear reading of the Prison Releasee Reoffender Statute, and under the recent Appellate decision of State v. Sammy Cotton, 24 F.L.W. D18 (Fla 2nd DCA 1998), to determine whether to impose a Life Sentence on a person who might otherwise qualify for a Life Sentence under the Statute, if one of the four Statutory exemptions are found to exist. The Trial Court is still the finder of fact based upon the separation of powers doctrine and the rationale that the Trial Court still is the fact finder in sentencing mitigators. The Legislature did not specifically transfer the role of the State Attorney to control the sentencing of a Defendant by allowing the factual finding of the four statutory exemptions to the imposition of a Prison Release Reoffender sentence to be performed by the State Attorney and not the Trial Court. The Trial Court, upon hearing all the facts of the case, the mental and the medical documentation presented at the properly found sentencing, that there were extenuating

circumstances to warrant an exception to the Prison Releasee Reoffender enhanced sentence. Therefore the Trial Court had the discretion to impose a Habitual Violent Felony Offender sentence of twenty (20) years in the Department of Corrections with a fifteen (15) year minimum mandatory, followed by five (5) years Probation.

#### ARGUMENT

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERROR BY NOT SENTENCING THE RESPONDENT TO A LIFE SENTENCE UNDER THE PRISON RELEASE REOFFENDER STATUTE, AND CORRECTLY EXERCISED ITS DISCRETION BY FINDING THAT EXTENUATING CIRCUMSTANCE EXIST AS A STATUTORY EXCEPTION TO THE PRISON RELEASE REOFFENDER ENHANCED SENTENCE.

> Fla. Stat. §775.082(9)(a)(2), If the State Attorney determines that a Defendant is a Prison Release Reoffender as defined in subparagraph 1., the State Attorney may seek to have the Court sentence the Defendant as Prison Release Reoffender...

> Fla. Stat. §775.082(9)(a)(2)(d)1, It is the intent of the Legislation that if the Defendant is previously released from prison, who meet the criteria in paragraph (a), be punished to the fullest extent of the law and as provided in the subsection, unless any of the following circumstances exist:

a) The prosecuting attorney does not have sufficient evidence to prove the highest charge available;

b) The testimony from material witness cannot be obtained;

c) The victim does not want the offender to

receive the mandatory prison sentence and provides a written statement to that effect; or

d) Other extenuating circumstances exist which preclude the just prosecution of the offender.

This latest sentencing Statute, commonly referred to as the Prison Release Reoffender Act allows for the imposition of a Life Sentence for a person that would qualify as a Prison Release Reoffender for the offense of Armed Burglary. At the time of filing the Appeal by the Respondent in this case, there had been no Appellate decisions interpreting this Act.

The Second District Court of Appeal recently has ruled on the issue of this Appeal regarding the Trial Court's discretion not to impose a sentence allowed for under the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act. In <u>State of Florida v. Sammy Cotton</u>, 24 F.L.W. D18 (Fla 2nd DCA 1998), the Second District Court of Appeal held that contrary to the Petitioner's argument that the 1997 adoption of the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act allows for the fact finding function for Fla. Stat. 775.082(8)(d)1 to be performed by the State Attorney; the Trial Court has the responsibility to make the fact finding. Therefore, the Trial Court has the discretion based upon the facts to exercise it's discretion by not imposing a maximum mandatory sentence under the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act.

State v. Sammy Cotton, 24 F.L.W. D18 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1998), specifically held that the provisions of §775.082(9) does not

specifically transfer the exercise of discretion from the Court to the State Attorney. Due to the Statute's silence on the transfer of power, the historical fact finding prerogative of the Trial Court shall remain with the Trial Court under this Legislative Act. The well reasoned analysis of <u>State v. Sammy Cotton</u>, should not be disturbed, and therefore adopted by this Honorable Court.

Upon a closer reading of Florida Statute §775.082(9)(a)(1) as it is combined with paragraph (d)(2), would by strict construction follow the Second District Court's reasoning in <u>State v. Sammy</u> <u>Cotton</u>. Florida Statute §775.082(9)(1) clearly indicates that if a person would otherwise qualify under the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act the State Attorney <u>may</u> seek a sentence under the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act. The clear language does not mandate the State of Florida to seek a sentence to the fullest extent of this provision if a person would otherwise qualify as a Prison Releasee Reoffender. The sentencing provisions would be triggered only if the State of Florida exercises its investigatory and prosecutory discretion by electing to seek to have a person sentenced as a Prison Releasee Reoffender.

Under Florida Statute §775.082(9)(d) which announces the exceptions to imposing a sentence under the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act, it is implied and inherent that the only way to

proceed on a sentence under the Prison Releasee Reoffender Act is if the State of Florida has already exercised its election and discretion to attempt to have the Defendant sentenced under this enhanced penalty provision. Upon the attempt to have a Defendant sentenced under this enhanced penalty scheme the Legislature has announced four exceptions to the enhanced penalty. If the State Attorney as the prosecuting authority, were aware of these four exceptions, then they would not seek a sentence under this enhanced penalty provision, and therefore there would be no the need for a fact finding of the existence of an exception.

It would therefore be common sense that if the State Attorney believed that extenuating circumstances existed, they would merely need not seek the Defendant to be sentenced under this Prison Releasee Reoffender Act. Therefore, under the full scheme of the operation of this Act it clearly is evident that these four exceptions were intended to remain a fact finding duty of the Trial Court. If as exceptions to the enhanced penalty did exist to the satisfaction of the State Attorney, the State Attorney does not by law have to file or seek the Defendant to be sentenced under the Prison Releasee Reoffender Enhanced Provision, and therefore the exceptions would not matter and would be meaningless.

As applied to the facts of this case the Trial Court clearly

had a sufficient factual basis to find that other extenuating circumstances existed which precludes the just prosecution of the offender. This exception does not allow for the termination of the prosecution of the offender, it merely gives the Trial Court sentencing discretion. The Respondent was, at the time of the offense, a twenty-three (23) year old black male who, based upon documents filed in the Court file, was subjected to a tragic childhood that was replete with physical and sexual abuse that culminated in several suicide attempts. The Trial Court, upon reviewing all of the facts of the case, including not all victims wanted the maximum sentence, the condition and history of the Defendant, took all the circumstances known to the Court.

Based upon everything the Trial Court was aware of, including substantial documents in the Court file, made a factual finding that the exception of extenuating circumstances to preclude just prosecution of the offender existed. The Respondent was then sentenced to twenty (20) years as a Habitual Violent Offender with a fifteen (15) year minimum mandatory sentence followed by five (5) years of Probation.

The Trial Court clearly reviewed the facts of the case and found that the Trial Court still maintains the discretion to determine whether any of the four exceptions would apply, and then

made a factual finding that the fourth exception to a sentence under the Prison Releasee Reoffender sentence does in fact apply under Fla. Stat. 775.082(9)(d)1(d). The Respondent was then sentenced as a Habitual Violent Offender to a term of twenty (20) years in prison with a fifteen (15) year minimum mandatory sentence followed by five (5) years of Probation.

#### CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, the Trial Court correctly exercised its discretion in finding that extenuating circumstances exist to not sentence the Respondent to Life in prison, and the twenty (20) year Habitual Violent Offender sentence with a fifteen (15) year minimum mandatory followed by five (5) years Probation should remain.